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	Town/City:  
Medford

	Place: (neighborhood or village):


East Medford

	Address: 
368 Salem Street

	Historic Name:  
Ephraim Bailey House 

	Uses:
Present: 
Single Family Residential

	Original: 
Single Family Residential 

	Date of Construction:  
pre 1855

	Source:  
Maps

	Style/Form:   
Altered Greek Revival/ end house

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown 

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
Parged or concrete

	Wall/Trim:  
Vinyl clapboards/Aluminum 

	Roof:  
Asphalt shingle 

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  

One story, single-bay garage.  

	Major Alterations (with dates):  

Porch, window openings, sash, and siding altered mid 20th century  



	Condition:  Fair


	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:  
4370 square feet 

	Setting:   
Mixed commercial and residential strip, made up mostly of single-story commercial blocks aligned to sidewalk and detached freestanding wood frame residential structures


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
Use as much space as necessary to complete the following entries, allowing text to flow onto additional continuation sheets.

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION:    

Describe architectural features.  Evaluate the characteristics of this building in terms of other buildings within the community.


The Bailey House is a one-and-a-half-story, wood-frame building, likely originally in the Greek Revival style. It appears to be a small, heavily altered temple-front, recessed-porch example of that style.  The house rises from a parged or concrete foundation, and although altered, it likely had a three-bay fenestration along Salem Street and a side-hall plan. A brick chimney rises from the front pile, below the ridge line.  The most distinctive feature of the house is a deeply overhanging front gabled roof, sheltering the recessed porch. While currently supported by cast-iron posts of mid-twentieth-century vintage, similar houses of this era have wooden, classical columns, suggesting a partial temple front. The fenestration of the flanking elevations has also been altered, although the current pattern suggests a two-room-deep plan. A long ell extends from the rear of the building, offset slightly to the right. Besides the loss of the original porch supports, the house has suffered the application of synthetic clapboard siding and the installation of modern, wide casement windows in all first floor openings. Only the two gable end windows along Salem Street retain their original size and shape, though these are currently filled with modern 1/1 vinyl sash. A one-story, flat-roof, single-bay garage stands at the rear of the lot.  The Bailey house is deeply set back from the street, surrounded by commercial neighbors, which are built directly on the street line. As such it is a survivor of an earlier streetscape that had been made up primarily of freestanding wood frame single-family houses on individual lots.  

Given its shape, size, chimney placement, overhang, and date of construction, the original appearance of the Bailey house was probably quite similar to that of the W. Cushing Cottage at 145 Main Street in Medford (MDF.52). That building has four Ionic columns supporting an engaged porch, as well as a wide classical entablature. It is unclear whether the Gothic bargeboard on that house also appeared here.  The two gabled dormers on the flanking elevation of the Main Street building do not appear here.  Little additional information about the original appearance of the house can be ascertained from the 1880 Bird’s Eye view. 
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
Discuss the history of the building.  Explain its associations with local (or state) history.  Include uses of the building, and the role(s) the owners/occupants played within the community. 

This house seems to have been built sometime before 1855 by Ephraim Bailey (c.1792, Charlestown – Aug. 30, 1876, Medford), a cooper by trade. He lived in the house that year with his wife Christina, his son William (b. 1829, East Cambridge – Oct. 2, 1889, Maine), a cabinetmaker, and his daughter Ellen. Mary J. Burnham, who appears to have then been engaged to William, as the two would marry in September of that year, was also among the occupants of the house. Bailey’s real estate was valued that year at $2,500. Bailey was a founding member of the Medford Amicable Singing Society, a music appreciation organization.
 By 1860 the household remained generally similar, except Ellen was gone and William was working as a printer.  Mary died in June of 1860 at age 29. William served in the 32nd Massachusetts regiment during the Civil War, enlisting in November of 1861 and leaving three years later. In 1867 William married his second wife Sarah Goss.  Ephraim died of old age in 1876. 
William Bailey remained in the house in 1880, four years after his father’s death. Then working as a house painter, he lived here with his wife Sarah. The couple had no children. William was admitted to the National Soldier’s Home in Togus, Maine, in 1886 for a disability related to a gun shot wound he suffered in his right hand during the war. He died in the hospital there three years later.  At the time of his death the hospital reported he had $3.92 worth of personal affects, the proceeds from the sale of which were sent to his sister Mrs. C.L. Goodale in Chelsea, Mass. 
By 1889, the property was owned by Ellen A. Greenleaf as an income property, since Greenleaf lived with her husband George in Malden. By 1900 the house was rented to Edgar Arnold (b.1847), a bookkeeper who headed a large household in the small house. The widowed Arnold lived with his eight children, ages 3 to 18, as well as a teenage niece. The two oldest Arnold sons worked as a shoe salesman and errand boy, respectively. By 1910, Arnold, then a water meter inspector, had moved to Fountain Avenue with his four youngest children. 
By 1910 the Salem Street house was owned and occupied by Harry Hogan (b.1877). Hogan, a salesman at a market, lived in the house with his wife Bertha, two sons, two daughters, and Harry’s elderly mother. Hogan moved next door to 378 Salem by 1920. At this time he worked as a railroad dispatcher. He had two additional young children, while his oldest found employment variously as a grocery salesman, a typist at a paint company, and a check girl in a department store. Hogan had sold the former Bailey house to Patrick J. Sullivan (b.1865) by 1920. Sullivan was an Irish immigrant who had been in the country since 1888. He was a teamster for a bakery who lived in the house with his wife Julia and son John. A second unit seems to have been created, as a second household is found at the address.  Margaret McMinnin, born in Massachusetts of Irish parents, was widowed and working as a maid, and lived in the house with her son John.  Sullivan remained in the house in 1930. By this point he was working as a laborer at a water works. In addition to Julia, the household took in two boarders, Bryan and Jerimiah Sweeney. Both Irish immigrants, and likely brothers, the pair worked as a carpenter and bus boy at a private club, respectively. There does not appear to be a second household in the building at this time. Ten years later the family was still in the house. Patrick by this point worked as a concrete finisher, though he reported no income from this trade. The family took in an elderly lodger, Arthur San Moon, who was born in New Hampshire. No occupation was listed for San Moon either, and it is unclear how the household supported itself. However, the house, which Patrick had by this point owned for more than 20 years, was valued at $3,000. 
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1855 Map. The “C.H. Bailey” is likely a reference to Bailey’s wife Christina. 
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1880 Bird’s eye view. The Bailey house is the the two bay, gabled-front building depicted at the center. 
� “Medford Amicable Singing Society” Medford Historical Register Vol. 7 (April 1905), 35. 
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